
Property / Regeneration Briefing 
The council is now holding virtual meetings. This plays a part in helping us to maintain 
the safety of the public, staff and councillors.

The City Mayor has asked that, as far as possible, there is still public involvement and 
input into the decision-making process.

Therefore, should you wish to raise a question or comment on any of the items listed, 
which will be presented at the meeting on your behalf, you can do so in writing, by 
sending an email to the address at the bottom of this agenda.

Please do this by 4.30pm on the day before the meeting is due to take place.

Further information on the coronavirus and what it means for Salford can be found on 
the council website - https://www.salford.gov.uk/coronavirus 

DATE: Monday, 28 September 2020

TIME: 11.00 am

VENUE: Microsoft Teams Meeting

AGENDA

PROCEEDINGS OF THE MEETING CAN BE ACCESSED BY THE 
FOLLOWING LINK:
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
join/19%3ameeting_YzZiM2VlYWYtODc3ZS00NzljLTgzN2EtYzAwNz
E0YTFmMzNl%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2268c
00060-d80e-40a5-b83f-
3b8a5bc570b5%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22573d04a0-0ae6-41ac-
938f-3d1aa4fc5fd1%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of interest 

3  Items for Decision - Part 1 (Open to the Public) 

3a Salford Rental E-Scooter Trial (Pages 1 - 8)

4  Information/Briefing Items 

The following items are for the primary purpose of providing members 
of the public with all relevant information on the respective matters, 
other than those elements, which in accordance with the relevant 
sections of the Local Government Act 1972, remain confidential and 
require that any arising decision is taken in Part 2 of the agenda

Public Document Pack



4a Land at David Lewis Playing Fields, Irwell Riverside (see Item 6(a)) (Pages 9 - 14)

4b Acquisition of Islington Mill, Ordsall (see Item 6(b)) (Pages 15 - 22)

4c 2 New Bailey Square, Ordsall (see Item 6(c)) (Pages 23 - 26)

5  Exclusion of the Public 

6  Items for Decision - Part 2 (Closed to the Public) 

6a Land at David Lewis Playing Fields, Irwell Riverside (Pages 27 - 28)

6b Acquisition of Islington Mill, Ordsall (Pages 29 - 30)

6c 2 New Bailey Square, Ordsall (Pages 31 - 32)

7  Any other business 

Contact Officer: Mike Relph, Senior Democratic Services Advisor
Tel No: 0161 793 3013
E-Mail: decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk

mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk


Part 1 Decision - 28 September 
2020 ITEM NO.

___________________________________________________________________

REPORT OF

THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE

TO  

PROPERTY AND REGENERATION BRIEFING

ON

28 September 2020

___________________________________________________________________

TITLE: Salford Rental E-Scooter Trial 

___________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That the City Mayor: 

1. Approves Salford City Council participating in the DfT’s rental e-scooter trial.
2. Approves the appointment of Lime Scooters as the sole operator for the 

duration of the DfT e-scooter trial in Salford.
3. Delegates approval to the Strategic Director, Place to enter into a 

Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with Lime Scooters for the purposes of 
operating the e-scooter trial in Salford.

___________________________________________________________________

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The Covid-19 pandemic has fundamentally changed the way that people are travelling 
across Greater Manchester. Social distancing considerations mean that public 
transport capacity has been significantly reduced, and as a result walking and cycling 
levels have significantly increased.  There is clearly a demand for alternative modes 
of transport which can provide additional first and last mile connectivity, compliant with 
social distancing rules.

The DfT are permitting a number of trial zones to test the operation of rental e-scooters 
across the UK. Guidance has been introduced to enable local authorities to use e-
scooters as a potential additional way to mitigate the reduction in public transport 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3a



capacity due to social distancing.  The report details the recommended approach to 
implementing a rental e-scooter trial zone in Salford.

___________________________________________________________________

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: (Open to the Public)

N/a.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS (NOT OPEN TO THE PUBLIC)

N/a.
___________________________________________________________________

KEY DECISION:  

Yes
___________________________________________________________________

DETAILS: 

1.0 Background

1.1 E-scooters can provide an alternative mode of travel for short trips, typically first 
and last mile journeys connecting transport hubs and local attractions.  Using a 
low cost and sustainable mode to supplement restricted public transport 
availability.  Approved DfT trials will provide the opportunity to explore the use 
of e-scooters for local mobility, while also generating evidence to guide the city-
region on future micromobility schemes. 

1.2 A Salford trial zone for rental e-scooters will aim to improve accessibility 
between The University of Salford, Central Salford and MediaCityUK areas.

2.0 Scheme Overview 

2.1 On 1 July 2020, the DfT published guidance which enabled the trial of rental e-
scooters across the UK in designated trial zones. The trial zones will run for up 
to 12 months.  Privately owned e-scooters remain illegal to use in public spaces.  

1.2 Potential benefits of e-scooters in GM include enhanced first/last mile 
connectivity, encouraging a shift away from cars for shorter journeys, and 
helping people with limited transport options access economic opportunities. E-
scooters may also act as a steppingstone to other forms of sustainable and 
active travel. Trials will help to inform the development of future transport 
strategy and the design planned mobility projects including the GM Bike Hire 
programme.

Page 2



1.3 The trial will initially cover the Peel Park and Frederick Road campuses of the 
University of Salford, before expanding (subject to satisfactory performance) to 
connect MediaCityUK and other parts of Salford’s city centre area.  Salford City 
Council’s project partners will include the e-scooter operator (Lime Scooters), 
Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) and the University of Salford (UoS).

3.0 Operator Selection 

3.1 As the e-scooter project is a time limited trial at no cost to the council, a formal 
procurement process is not required.  In order to identify a suitable e-scooter 
provider to operate the trial in Salford, representatives from SCC, TfGM and 
UoS reviewed submissions from 15 interested operators. A selection process 
consisting of written submissions, interviews and scooter demonstration 
sessions was undertaken to assess the operators and determine the most 
suitable provider.  

3.2 Through this process Lime Scooters were identified as the most suitable 
operator.  Lime is an experienced mobility operator within the cycle and scooter 
rental industry and currently operates in approximately 125 cities across 30 
countries.

4.0 Scheme Operation

4.1 The DfT requirements for the trial are that e-scooters must have a maximum 
speed of 15.5mph, the same limit as for electric bicycles and users must be 
over 18 and hold either a provisional or full driving license. Only e-scooters hired 
through an approved rental scheme are permitted in trial areas, private scooters 
remain illegal to use in public.

4.2 Hired e-scooters will be permitted in areas where cycles are currently allowed 
such as roads, cycle lanes and shared footways. Local restrictions determined 
by Salford City Council will be in place to define the permitted areas of operation 
and variable maximum speeds for the e-scooters dependent on the particulars 
of the operating area.

4.3 The operator Lime is fully responsible for all costs of implementing the trial and 
operational aspects including provision and maintenance of equipment, 
membership and user verifications, insurance, scheme promotion and liaison 
with stakeholders.

Operating areas / phasing 

4.4 The 12 month e-scooter rental trial will be split into 3 phases. Phase 1 will 
encompass the University of Salford Frederick Road and Peel Park campuses 
and provide a short term test bed for operational testing within a controlled 
environment.  Phase 2 will connect Peel Park  and MediaCityUK campuses 
together via a defined corridor along the A6 / Cross Lane and Broadway using 

Page 3



existing highway and cycle infrastructure.  Subject to successful operations 
phase 3 would expand the operational areas eastwards to cover Ordsall and 
City Centre Salford to the Manchester city boundary. It is expected that up to 
300 scooters will be provided across the 3 phases.

4.5 E-scooters will be hired and left in specific parking areas designated for the e- 
           scooter trial, enforced by GPS geo fencing to control their placement and 
           availability.

5.0 Defining a Successful Trial 

5.1 As the designated operator for the rial Lime scooters will be responsible for 
delivering a safe and successful e-scooter trial in the city.  In order to achieve 
this Lime will work closely with stakeholders to deliver on all aspects of a 
Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) which will be agreed between Salford 
City Council and Lime. The MoU will set out the key requirements relating to 
operations, safety, performance and financial investment. Failure to meet the 
requirements of the MoU could lead to termination of the trial by SCC.

5.2 Lime have committed to making a number of financial investments in the city 
as part of the trial covering aspects such as job opportunities, training, safety, 
parking infrastructure, discounted and free rides to users, and research grants.

6.0     Recommendations and next steps

6.1 DfT approval to proposed e-scooter trial area is required and a draft submission    
is currently being assessed by the DfT. Work is currently ongoing to implement the required Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO’s) and prepare for mobilisation of the trial.  It is anticipated that phase 1 the trial will be launched early October 2020.

6.2 Recommend that the City Mayor:

1. Approves Salford City Council participating in the DfT’s rental e-scooter trial.
2. Approves the appointment of Lime Scooters as the sole operator for the 

duration of the DfT e-scooter trial in Salford.
3. Delegates approval to the Strategic Director, Place to enter into a 

Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with Lime Scooters for the purposes of 
operating the e-scooter trial.

__________________________________________________________________

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

 Salford 2025, a Modern Global City.
 Transport in Salford 2025.

___________________________________________________________________

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

The schemes will be designed in accordance with highways design standards and 
Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) legislation.
___________________________________________________________________

Page 4



ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  LOW
___________________________________________________________________

SOURCE OF FUNDING:   Costs are covered by the Operator (Lime Scooters)
___________________________________________________________________

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Submitted by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323
Date: 16.09.20

Ordinarily when commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or 
the execution of works, the Council must comply with the requirements of the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s). 
The proposed award of the pilot arrangement follows an exercise by inviting and 
assessing submissions from relevant providers in conjunction with the Council’s 
stakeholder partners, at zero cost to the Council.  

As all public contracts must be procured using principles of fairness, transparency and 
non-discrimination, any future procurement of the e-scooter service going forward 
must be undertaken in accordance with those principles, and accordingly there must 
be no prejudice suffered by bidders for any such contract in the future due to Lime 
Scooters involvement and appointment to the pilot project. 

Assuming approval is given to the proposal, relevant Traffic Regulation Orders will 
need to be introduced or amended appropriately to ensure compliance with legislative 
requirements, and Legal Services will again assist in that regard upon receipt of 
instructions. 

To ensure the Council’s interests are sufficiently protected, Legal Services will be 
happy to advise and assist in drafting/reviewing the MoU with Lime Scooters referred 
to, and have been involved in similar pilot projects previously such as the Mobike 
scheme. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Submitted by: Natalie Birchall
Date: 16.09.2020

The report outlines, SCC proposal to trial e-scooters in partnership with the 
appointment of Lime Scooters. All costs will be covered by the partner and there will 
be no impact on the city councils budget. 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by:  Anthony Hilton
Date: 16th September 2020

Comments: As the report states, the e-scooter rental trial with Lime Scooters is a DfT 
approved scheme at zero cost to the Council, therefore at this stage there are no direct 

Page 5



procurement implications. A transparent process has been undertaken in order to 
select the partner for the duration of the trial period. At the conclusion of the trial period, 
should there be an ongoing requirement longer term, then a procurement process is 
likely to be required. It is therefore important that Lime Scooters understand from the 
outset that the successful delivery of the trial will in no way result in them automatically 
being awarded ongoing contracts, should this be a longer term requirement. They 
would be required to engage in a transparent procurement process if required.

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: The schemes will provide more sustainable 
transport options in line with the councils climate change aspirations.
___________________________________________________________________

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/a.
___________________________________________________________________

CONTACT OFFICER: Lee Evans                               TEL. NO: 0161 7933801

___________________________________________________________________

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): All

Page 6



P
age 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1- OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE

TO THE CITY MAYOR’S REGENERATION BRIEFING – 14 September 2020

Decision – 28th September 2020

TITLE: GRANT OF OPTION AND DISPOSAL OF LAND ADJACENT TO DAVID 
LEWIS PLAYING FIELDS AND PEEL PARK, SALFORD

RECOMMENDATIONS:

The City Mayor is recommended to:

Note and approve the proposals detailed below on the terms as set out in the body of 
this report and on the detailed terms set out in an accompanying Part 2 report 
elsewhere on the agenda.

1. Approve the grant of an option to dispose, by way of long lease, of land 
adjacent to David Lewis Playing Fields and Peel Park, Salford, to the 
University of Salford. 

2. Approve the disposal of the land to the University of Salford (if exercised by 
the service of an option notice pursuant to the option to purchase which will 
create a binding contract for the sale and purchase of the land)..

3. Authorise the Shared Legal Service to negotiate, agree and complete the 
necessary documentation and the taking of all steps which are expedient to 
give effect to the above recommendations.

4. Note that further investigations will be made into the creation of a “Rolling 
Acquisition Fund” funding facility to support strategic site assembly in the 
Crescent Masterplan Area, the outcome of which will be subject to a further 
report.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

The University of Salford have previously expressed an interest in acquiring land 
situated to the north of their recent Peel Park Quarter student accommodation 
development to deliver a further phase of student accommodation on the site, subject 
to planning approval.

Page 9

Agenda Item 4a



2

The Council owned site is situated adjacent to David Lewis Playing Fields, to the north 
of Peel Park, and is identified in the Crescent Masterplan, in which the University is a 
joint partner with the Council, as a development opportunity for further student 
accommodation.

An earlier report to City Mayor’s Regeneration Briefing on 13th July 2020 authorised 
negotiations to seek to agree terms with the University for the disposal of the land, 
subject to those terms once agreed being the subject of a further report seeking 
approval.

Terms for an option agreement for the University to acquire the land subject to securing 
planning permission for the proposed use as student accommodation have now been 
agreed and authority is sought to progress the legal documentation and, subject to the 
exercise of the option, the sale of the land.

The sale of the subject site represents the first agreed land transaction within the 
Crescent masterplan area for which there are clearly identifiable strategic site 
assembly requirements.

Whist the obligations for site assembly rests with our private sector partner, English 
Cities Fund, as has been illustrated on the Central Salford Regeneration scheme, the 
establishment of a City Council financed “Rolling Acquisition Fund (RAF)”, repayable 
in full from future disposals, has proved highly beneficial in creating the necessary 
pipeline of developable land phases at optimum cost for the partnership.

Such a facility on the Crescent masterplan could offer similar benefits and we therefore 
propose that further investigations are made into how this could be facilitated. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: Not applicable

KEY DECISION: YES

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The University of Salford secured planning consent for their Peel Park Quarter 
student accommodation in 2013 and completed the development in 2015.The 
University are now seeking to expand their Peel Park Quarter campus, as 
identified as an objective in the Crescent Masterplan, and have expressed an 
interest in acquiring land in the Council’s ownership to the north, situated 
adjacent to David Lewis Playing Fields. 

2.0     DETAILS

Page 10



3

2.1 Further to an earlier report to City Mayor’s Regeneration Briefing on 13th July 
2020 authorising negotiations to seek to agree terms with the University for 
the disposal of the land, terms for an option agreement have now been 
provisionally agreed as follows:

Landlord: Salford City Council.

Tenant: University of Salford.

Description: Grant of an option to purchase a 1.6 acre plot of land 
adjacent to David Lewis Playing Fields, to the north of 
Peel Park, as shown edged red on the attached plan.

Proposed Tenure: A sale by way of 250yr leasehold interest.

Option Period: 24 months from date of agreement, with an obligation on 
the Purchaser to submit a planning application within 12 
months of date of agreement.

Deferment: The lease premium is to be paid in two instalments with 
50% payable on completion of the sale and the balance 
payable on practical completion of the residences or 12 
months following the sale, whichever is the earlier.

User: Student residential, maximum of 850 bedspaces.

Costs: Each party to bear their own costs.

Conditions: 1. Exchange and completion of land transaction within 28 
days of the Purchaser securing planning permission.

2. A Satisfactory Planning Consent will be a planning 
application granted by Salford City Council’s Planning & 
Transportation Regulatory Panel.

2.2 Ward Members have been advised of the provisionally agreed terms for the 
option agreement. 

2.3 Approval is sought to enter into an option agreement to dispose of the land on 
the terms set out above, conditional on the Purchaser securing planning 
permission for the proposed use.

3.0      Consideration of a Rolling Acquisition Fund facility.

3.1 The sale of the subject site represents the first agreed land transaction within 
the Crescent masterplan area for which there are clearly identifiable strategic 
site assembly requirements.

Page 11



4

3.2 Whist the obligations for site assembly rests with our private sector partner, 
English Cities Fund, as has been illustrated on the Central Salford Regeneration 
scheme, the establishment of a City Council financed “Rolling Acquisition Fund 
(RAF)”, repayable in full from future land receipts, has proved highly beneficial 
in creating the necessary pipeline of developable land phases at optimum cost 
for the partnership.

 
3.3 Importantly the RAF facility minimised the potential for unwelcome property 

speculation by enabling opportunity private treaty purchases to be progressed 
swiftly and with the confidence of funding being in place. 

3.4 Whilst we are not at this stage necessarily proposing an identical contractual 
RAF arrangement with ECf on the Crescent, we consider that some form of 
Council financed RAF to support site assembly within the masterplan area could 
offer tangible benefits and warrants further consideration.  

3.5 We are therefore proposing that investigations are progressed, in collaboration 
with Finance and Legal colleagues, together with our regeneration partners, as 
to how such a fund could be facilitated and operated, and how masterplan land 
disposals, such as the one subject to this report, could contribute to its provision.  

3.6 The outcome of these investigations will be subject to a future report to 
Regeneration Briefing in due course.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

Council’s capital receipt programme, Regeneration, Housing, Crescent Masterplan

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: Not applicable

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Michelle Brice, Shared Legal Service 
(Property)

The grant to the University of Salford of the option to purchase the land creates an 
option for the University to purchase the land (at its discretion) within the option 
period (2 years from the date of the option agreement).  If the University exercises 
the option by service of an option notice, a legally binding agreement for the sale and 
purchase of the land will be created at that time, obliging the Council to sell the land 

Page 12



5

to the University.  The terms of that sale will be detailed in the terms of the option 
agreement and should incorporate the terms as detailed in this report.  

The Council’s surveyor has confirmed that the agreed disposal price reflects best 
value for the land and takes into account the duration of the option period.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Alex Archer, Finance Manager

If the option is exercised by the University, the Council will sell the land to the 
University with the sale proceeds being received in 2 stages, 50% on completion of 
the sale and the balance on completion of the residences or 12 months following the 
purchase whichever is earlier. 

If a rolling acquisition fund approach is used on the Crescent masterplan area this 
receipt would be in scope. The acquisition fund approach will be investigated further.

When drawing up the option to purchase the VAT status of the sale will need to be 
determined and detailed.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Christine Flisk

There are no procurement implications contained within this report.

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Not applicable

MEMBER COMMENTS: None received to date.

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Mike Hemingway x3209

The site includes a number of mature trees and the appropriate mitigation should be 
delivered to compensate for any works to trees and the loss of green space, 
including replacing lost trees with suitable specimens and greening of the urban 
environment which will help support our target to plant 3 million new trees as part of 
the Greater Manchester 5 Year Environment Plan.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: Regeneration.

Page 13



6

CONTACT OFFICER: John Nugent TEL NO: 779 6072

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Irwell Riverside

Page 14



1

Part 1 – Open to the public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF 
THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE

TO THE CITY MAYOR’S PROPERTY AND REGENERATION BRIEFING 

ON 28th SEPTEMBER 2020 – For DECISION

New Islington Mill

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That City Mayor is recommended to: 

Note and approve the proposals detailed below on the terms as set out in the body of 
this report and on the detailed terms set out in an accompanying Part 2 report 
elsewhere on the agenda.

1. Note the successful outcome of the ERDF funding bid for the Islington Mill Arts 
Club project.

2. Authorise the Council (through it’s scheme of delegation) to enter into a Grant 
Funding Agreement with MHCLG to draw down the ERDF funding and a back 
to back Grant Funding Agreement with Islington Mill Arts Club.

3. Re-affirm the decision made at Property and Regeneration Briefing on 23rd 
March 2020 approving the acquisition of New Islington Mill at an agreed 
purchase price, on the more detailed heads of terms now set out in this report 
and;

4. Authorise the Shared Legal Service to negotiate, agree and complete the 
necessary documentation and the taking of all steps which are expedient to 
give effect to the above recommendation.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

Page 15

Agenda Item 4b



2

The purpose of this report is to update City Mayor of progress on the acquisition of 
New Islington Mill following recent confirmation of the award of ERDF funding as part 
of the wider Islington Mill Arts Club ‘The Other City’ creative industries project.

A previous report on the Islington Mill project to Property and Regeneration Briefing 
dated 23rd March 2020 highlighted a significant project risk concerning the acquisition 
of New Islington Mill, which formed an integral part of the ERDF funding bid.

The report summarised the acquisition terms that had been negotiated with the owner 
of New Islington Mill and highlighted the options open to the Council to de-risk the 
potential for the owner to dispose of the property to third parties in advance of a grant 
funding decision, including the option of an overage clause in the contract of sale.

In order to protect the Council’s position in securing agreement on acquisition terms, 
authority was given to continue negotiations with the owner to secure the acquisition 
of the property and, should it be necessary, to acquire the property at the provisionally 
agreed purchase price ahead of a decision on ERDF funding.

Confirmation of an ERDF funding award was received on 9th September 2020, subject 
to the Council entering into a Grant Funding Agreement with the funding body. 
Authority is now sought to enter into that Grant Funding Agreement to enable 
drawdown of funding.

Approval is also sought to complete the acquisition of New Islington Mill on the 
previously approved terms, as detailed in the heads of terms now set out in this report. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: Not applicable.

KEY DECISION: Yes 

1.0 DETAILS:

1.1 Further to an earlier report to City Mayor’s Property and Regeneration Briefing 
on 23rd March 2020, which authorised negotiations to agree terms for the 
acquisition of New Islington Mill and to acquire at the provisionally agreed 
purchase price in advance of a funding decision if necessary, terms have been 
agreed on the following basis: 

          Vendor: As detailed in the Part 2 report.
          Purchaser: Salford City Council.
          Demise: Land and premises at New Islington Mill, Salford shown 

edged red on the attached plan comprising 1,021 square 
metres being the property registered under Title Number 
GM872578.

Page 16



3

          Tenure: Freehold, subject to vacant possession of land and premises 
on completion.

          Consideration: As detailed in the Part 2 report, subject to a Grant Funding 
Agreement for drawdown of an ERDF grant award by the 
Council. SDLT will be payable by the Purchaser, unless any 
exemptions apply in respect of the grant funding. 

          Deposit: A non-refundable deposit of 10% of the consideration will be 
payable on exchange of contracts. The balance of the 
consideration will be paid on the Vendor providing vacant 
possession.

          Use:

         Overage:

Existing uses considered to fall within Use Class B1 
(Business), D2 (Assembly & Leisure) or such other uses as 
approved by the local planning authority.   

An overage provision is to be included in the contract to the 
effect that the Vendor will be entitled to receive 25% of any 
uplift in value generated on disposal of the land or property for 
a use that constitutes residential new-build or residential 
conversion for a period of 15 years from date of acquisition. 

         Planning: The Purchaser to bear all planning, building and other 
statutory costs associated with any proposed development.

         Services: The Vendor to make available any statutory or regulatory 
documentation relating to Asbestos Management, Fire Safety, 
Electrical and Gas Safety, Water Hygiene and Health & Safety 
requirements, where available. The Purchaser shall accept 
the demise in its condition at the date of possession and shall 
satisfy themselves as to the suitability of the site for their 
proposed use.

         Insurance: The Purchaser to be responsible for insuring the land and 
property from date of Completion.

         Costs: Each party to bear their own legal costs. 
The Purchaser to be responsible for all statutory costs and 
taxes that may arise from this transaction.

         Completion:

         Conditions:

On a date to be agreed following confirmation of vacant 
possession by way of inspection.

Any other conditions normally incorporated by the City 
Council in an agreement of this type.

         VAT: Confirmation will be provided by the Vendor that there has 
been no election to tax on the property.  

         SDLT: The Purchaser will be responsible for Stamp Duty Land Tax.

1.2 Confirmation of ERDF funding for the wider Islington Mill Arts Club ‘The Other 
City’ project was received on 9th September 2020, subject to the Council 
entering into a Grant Funding Agreement with the funding body. Authority is now 

Page 17



4

sought to enter into that Grant Funding Agreement (and the back to back 
funding agreement with Islington Mill Arts Club) to enable drawdown of funding 
for the acquisition as set out above.

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 
The Great Eight

Education and Skills
Economic Development
Social Value

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:
No assessment has been undertaken at this stage.  

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 
Medium: The key risks identified are as follows: -

Prior to the submission of the ERDF funding bid draft Heads of Terms were 
agreed with the owner of New Islington Mill to sell the property to the Council.  
However, it subsequently emerged that the owner was also in discussion with 
another interested party.

If the owner were to sell New Islington Mill to another party, then the ambition 
of the City Council and Islington Mill Arts Club to refurbish and expand managed 
workspace for a creative industries hub centred on Islington Mill could not be 
fully achieved.

Continued negotiation with the owner of New Islington Mill during the ERDF bid 
process has sought to mitigate against this risk and now that a funding award 
has been made an early exchange of contracts will commit the owner to a sale.

Full and detailed intrusive surveys and investigations on the building can only 
be undertaken following completion of the acquisition and the scope of works 
required to refurbish for the proposed use can only be fully costed on transfer 
of ownership, appointment of building consultants and main contractor.
    

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Tony Hatton and Gaynor Corfe, Shared Legal 
Service

Funding from ERDF has now been confirmed in correspondence, and the terms of the 
Grant Funding Agreement with MHCLG are awaited and expected imminently. Legal 
Services shall draft and advise on the grant funding agreement between the Council 
and Islington Mill Arts Club (IMAC) as referred to (and has previously undertaken 
projects with a similar grant funding and contract structure such as New Bailey 

Page 18



5

Gateway). It will be important to ensure that this grant funding agreement flows down 
any requirements placed upon the Council by ERDF onto IMAC. Effectively these will 
be back-to-back agreements to ensure the terms are sufficiently reflected.

The heads of terms detailed in the report will be incorporated into the legal agreements 
required in connection with the purchase.   

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Natalie Birchall

The council committed in December 2019, to developing the ERDF funding bid, which 
has now been awarded. This is subject to the council entering into a grant funding 
agreement with the funding body, to enable drawdown of the funding. 
Approval is also sought to complete the acquisition of New Islington Mill on the 
previously approved terms (City Mayor’s Property and Regeneration Briefing on the 
23rd March 2020), subject to the grant funding agreement.
SDLT will be payable by the Purchaser, unless any exemptions apply in respect of the 
grant funding. 
A non-refundable deposit of 10% of the consideration will be payable on exchange of 
contracts.  

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Deborah Derbyshire

There are no procurement implications within the briefing note.  Procurement 
comments have been inserted in the previous report outlining any procurement 
activity is subject to the Public Contracts Regulations.

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:
Not applicable at this stage.

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:
Consulted: Mike Hemingway, Principal Officer Climate Change ext 3209

A requirement of ERDF is that the project meets BREEAM ‘very good’. The Councils 
aspiration is to aim for ‘excellent’ on this project.  However, it should be noted that 
this can often prove difficult on historic buildings.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  Not applicable

CONTACT OFFICER: John Nugent TEL NO: Ext 6072

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Ordsall

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



LB

FBs

ESS

MIDDLEWOOD STREET

37.2m

52

37.5m

JO
IN

E
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

O
LD

FI
E
LD

 R
O

A
D

1

Depot

35.7m

6

54

1

M
IL

LS
ID

E
 L

A
N

E

R
O

LL
IN

G
 S

T
R

E
E

T

ROLLING STREET

7 to 11

Lock

Electricity Distribution Site

31.7m

E
A

S
T

 O
R

D
S

A
L

L
 L

A
N

E

Lock

M
A

S
S

E
Y

 S
T

R
E

E
T

UPPER WHARF STREET

Works

39.0m

B
A

C
K

 H
U

L
M

E

Works

S
T

R
E

E
T

7 to 19

22

HULME STREET

39.3m

CANAL STREET

39.6m

2

WB

28

Hall

IS
L
IN

G
T

O
N

 W
A

Y

5

4

Canon Hussey Court

FIREFLY CLOSE

1
 t

o
 1

4
8

1

SW
IFTSURE AVENUE

S
O

U
T

H
 W

IL
L
IA

M
 S

T
R

E
E

T

2
9

7

1
3

3
7

1
7

1

1

Vimto Gardens

JAMES STREET

2

14

Lane
Cycle

1
7

BARROW STREET
G

IB
B

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

38.1m

Shelter

1
5

O
L
D

F
IE

L
D

 R
O

A
D

38.4m

St Philip's C of E

Islington Mill

W
a
rd

 B
d
y

Primary
School

Sta

Sub

El

G
A

Y
T

H
O

R
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

Albert Mill

4
1

Sports Court

SL

Play Area

STEVENSON STREET

Trading38.4m

Estate

Regent

U
n
it 4 U

n
it 5

U
n
it 

1

U
n
its

 2
 &

 3

4
1

2

4

6

1
 t

o
 1

4
8

R
O

C
K

E
T

 W
A

Y

C
L

O
S

E

10

I S
L
IN

G
T

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

Cornwall House

3

1
 t

o
 1

2

Arthur Millwood Court

4

6

28

W
O

O
D

L
A

R
K

2

NORTH STAR DRIVE

1
 t

o
 1

2

E
d
i n

b
u
rg

h
 H

o
u

s
e

SL

16

1

18 to 21

PH

Shelters

Pot

Pint

(PH)

Old

13 to 15

PH

St Philips Square

1119

8

1

20

115

10

Trinity Court

34.7m

7

G
R

E
A

T
 G

E
O

R
G

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
268

266

260

34.1m

Bank

35.7m

2

101 to 509

LB

House

of

The Parish Church

1

Adelphi

1

The Royal

37.2m37.5m

BANK PLACE
36.3m

W
IL

T
O

N
 P

L
A

C
E

36.6m

357

BANK STREET

S
T

 P
H

IL
IP

'S
 P

L
A

C
E

35.7m

W
R

O
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

Memorial

War

St Stephen

with

St Philip

365

Central Court Apartments

1
 to

 1
9

St John the Evangelist

Monument

St Johns Square

250

32.6m

House
Cathedral

Cathedral Church of

Ward Bdy

2
0

 t
o

 4
0

Cathedral Centre

CHAPEL STREET

New Islington Mill

Location Plan

Property
Services Section

Salford Civic Centre
Chorley Road

Salford
M27 5AS

Plan Ref:
Scale @ A4:
Date:
OS Map Ref:

1:2500
24/01/2020
SJ8298SE

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100019737 2020

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1 ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE

TO PROPERTY AND REGENERATION BRIEFING
ON 

28th September 2020

TITLE: 2 New Bailey Square, Salford - Letting of part Ground Floor

RECOMMENDATIONS:  

The City Mayor is recommended to:-

Note and approve the proposals detailed below on the terms as set out in the body of 
this report and on the detailed terms set out in an accompanying Part 2 report 
elsewhere on the agenda.

Approve the terms for a lease of part of the ground floor as set out in this report and 
that authority is given for the completion of all required legal documents.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

At the Property and Regeneration Briefing on the 22nd May 2017, terms were approved 
for the City Council to enter into an Agreement for Lease followed by a lease on 2 New 
Bailey Square as part of the wider Salford Central regeneration.  The lease will be for 
a term of 25 years from completion of the building which is currently forecast for early 
October 2020.  The agreement follows the pattern adopted for One New Bailey in that 
the Council takes a pre-let of the entire building with space then sublet to tenants at a 
rental level exceeding that paid by the Council.  This report outlines the terms which 
have now been agreed for a letting of part of the ground floor of the property.

In summary, the letting is to a national retailer.  The company is proposing to take a 15 
years lease from practical completion of the building with an option to extend for a 
further 10 years.  The rent and terms are in line with the original approval for the head 
lease and this agreement is a positive sign in the current challenging market conditions.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  N/A Part 2 report

KEY DECISION: YES 

Page 23

Agenda Item 4c



2

DETAILS:

1.1 The Council, following approval by the City Mayor in May 2017 entered into an 
agreement to take a 25 years lease of 2 New Bailey Square, a new 186,000sq 
ft grade A office building and the third plot to be developed on the New Bailey 
estate.  The Council’s lease will begin upon practical completion of the building 
which is currently forecast to take place in early October 2020.

1.2 Following marketing of the development, terms for a letting of part of the ground 
floor of the building have been provisionally agreed.

Lessor: Salford City Council
Property:  Part of the ground floor of 2 New Bailey Square extending to 

approximately 4,402sq ft (subject to a final measure)  
The Lessee will enter into an Agreement for Lease 
committing it to take a lease based on these terms upon 
practical completion of the building.

Term:        15 years commencing ten days after practical completion of 
the building.  
The Lessee also has a right to extend the lease by 10 years 
at the end of the initial 15 years term (to be co-terminus with 
the Council’s headlease).
The Lessee has the option to break the lease on the 10th 
anniversary of the term.

User: Class A1 Retail.
Repairs: Full repairing and insuring.
Business Rates: The Lessee to be responsible for business rates.  
Other Conditions: As normally included in leases of this nature.
Costs: Each party to bear its own legal costs and the letting agent’s 

fees.

1.4 Taking account of the standard of the building and the prominence of the unit 
being let, discussions have taken place to ensure that the design of the 
storefront is of a high quality and provides active frontages.  The design of the 
store will be subject to approval by the Council as landlord.

1.5 The ground floor of 2 New Bailey Square is currently occupied by the main 
building reception, a dedicated reception for one of the upper floor tenants, 
Eversheds Sutherland, and the new retail letting.  There is a remaining unit 
between what will become the retail store and the Eversheds reception with 
marketing continuing to identify an occupier for this space.  The aspiration for 
the ground floor units were that they would attract food and beverage (F&B) 
operators in a similar way to One New Bailey.  With the current pandemic there 

Page 24



3

are no F&B users acquiring new units and the Council’s advisers state that this 
is likely to be the situation for a period of time to come.  The retail letting does 
not preclude F&B operators taking space on the ground floor in the future, but 
the prevailing market conditions mitigate against this use at present.

2.0 Conclusion

2.1 During a challenging period, the proposed letting is a vote of confidence in both 
2 New Bailey Square and the wider New Bailey estate.  The letting is a further 
positive step towards the success of the building and vindication of the Council’s 
investment in the scheme.

2.3 The terms above have been viewed against the model cashflow for the 2 New 
Bailey Square project and show a positive impact.

3.0 Recommendation

3.1 It is recommended that:
 The terms proposed in the report for an Agreement for Lease followed by a 

lease be approved, and 
 Authority is given for the completion of the legal formalities.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

Salford 2025 Regeneration
Creating prosperity in Salford

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:

There are no equality impact arising and directly as a consequence of this report.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low 

A full set of institutionally acceptable documents will be put in place by the Council’s 
legal advisers prior to the transfer of any funds to the prospective tenant following 
completion of a suitable due diligence exercise.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Gaynor Corfe, Head of Property, Shared Legal 
Service Tel: 234 3118

Page 25



4

There are no adverse legal implications with regards to the proposed disposal provided 
that the disposal is at market value and constitutes the best consideration reasonably 
obtainable this will satisfy the requirements of Section 123 of the Local Government 
Act 1972

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Chris Mee Strategic Finance Manager Ext. 
0434

In approving this project in May 2017, Cabinet took into account the risks associated 
with the scheme and the mitigations in place to manage those risks. The decision to 
approve the project was taken on the basis that members were comfortable with the 
cautious financial scenario outlined in the report considered.

The proposed terms to be offered for the retail letting outlined in this report would be 
an improvement to this cautious scenario and would if approved reduce the financial 
risk being taken by the council on this project. 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:

There are no procurement implications relating to the terms of this lease.

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:

There are no HR implications arising from this proposal.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  None

CONTACT OFFICER: Steven Keigher TEL NO: 779 6087

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  Ordsall

Page 26



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972

Name of Report:  
Grant of Option and Disposal of Land 
adjacent David Lewis playing fields, 
Salford.
                        

Committee:
Property/Regeneration Briefing  
Date:  28th September 2020 (Decision)

Category of exemption applied:  Paragraph 3  Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the Authority 
holding that information )

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public 
debate about current issues?

No

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions? 

No

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff?

No

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers? 

No

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives? 

No

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)  

No

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-
making or examples of malpractice?

No

Page 27

Agenda Item 6a



FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information?

Yes

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information? 

Yes

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation?

No

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the 
public useful information? 

No

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals 
at risk? 

No

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would 
benefit more from information being withheld? 

 

Yes

Justification of decision

Disclosure before sale completion would be inappropriate as it would disclose 
confidential information and is likely to adversely affect the financial position of the 
Council and the interested parties.

Other documents available for inspection: Public briefing document submitted to 
Property/Regen Briefing on 28 September 2020
Name and Title: John Nugent, Development Surveyor
Date: 1st September 2020

Page 28



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972

Name of Report:  
New Islington Mill.
                        

Committee:
Regeneration Briefing  
Date  28th September 2020 (Decision)

Category of exemption applied:  Paragraph 3  Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the Authority 
holding that information )

Public Interest Test Questionnaire

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public 
debate about current issues?

No

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions? 

No

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff?

No

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers? 

No

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives? 

No

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)  

No

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-
making or examples of malpractice?

No

Page 29

Agenda Item 6b



FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information?

Yes

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information? 

Yes

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation?

No

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the 
public useful information? 

No

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals 
at risk? 

No

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would 
benefit more from information being withheld? 

 

Yes

Justification of decision

Disclosure before sale completion would be inappropriate as it would disclose 
confidential information and is likely to adversely affect the financial position of the 
Council and the interested parties.

Other documents available: Public briefing report submitted to Property/Regen Briefing 
on 28 September 2020
Name and Title: John Nugent, Development Surveyor
Date: 16th September 2020

Page 30



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972

Name of Report: 2 New Bailey Square, 
Salford - Letting of part of Ground Floor 

Committee: 
Property and Regeneration Briefing
Date: 28 September 2020

Category of exemption applied: Paragraph 3 Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the Authority holding that 
information

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public 
debate about current issues?

Yes

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions? 

Yes

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff?

No

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers? 

No

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives? 

No

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)  

No

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-
making or examples of malpractice?

No

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact 
occurred?

No

Page 31

Agenda Item 6c



FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information?

Yes

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information? 

Yes

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation?

No

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the 
public useful information? 

Yes

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals 
at risk? 

No

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would 
benefit more from information being withheld? 

 

Yes

Name and Title: Stephen Keigher - Principal Estate Surveyor

Date: 17 September 2020

Justification of decision

Disclosure of details of the proposed transaction is likely to be detrimental to the 
financial interests of the Council if the name the prospective tenant is released to the 
market and it chooses to withdraw from the transaction.  At the request of the 
prospective tenant, the Council has been asked to withhold details of the transaction 
whilst negotiations take place between the prospective tenant and its existing 
landlord.

The main details of the transaction, excluding financial information, will be available 
following completion. 

Page 32


	Agenda
	3a Salford Rental E-Scooter Trial
	4a Land at David Lewis Playing Fields, Irwell Riverside (see Item 6(a))
	4b Acquisition of Islington Mill, Ordsall (see Item 6(b))
	04bii Appx A New Islington Mill Plan

	4c 2 New Bailey Square, Ordsall (see Item 6(c))
	6a Land at David Lewis Playing Fields, Irwell Riverside
	6b Acquisition of Islington Mill, Ordsall
	6c 2 New Bailey Square, Ordsall

